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Vision
Elahi Cotton Mills Limited’s vision is to run on purely professional grounds and to accomplish, build

up and sustain a good reputation within textile industry by marketing premium quality yam by means
of honesty, integrity and commitment.

Mission Statement

It is the mission of the Company:

- To transform the Company into a modern and dynamic yam manufacturer and o provide
premium quality products 10 customers,

To foster a culture of trust in order to make professional life at the Elahi Cotton Mills Limited a
stimulating and challenging expericnee for all our people.

- To build the Company on sound financial footings, increase earning distribution of adequate
return to sharcholders, employees and to contribute towards the government revenues.

To expand sales of the Company through geod Governance and faster a sound and dynamic
team so as to achieve optimum profitably for the Company for sustaining and equitable growth
and prosperity of the Company.

- To make comprehensive arrangements for the training of our workers technicians.
_ To strive for the continuous development of Pukistan while adding value to the textile sector.
- To continue to earn the respect, confidence and goodwill of our customers and suppliers.

To carn and sustain the trust of our stukeholders through efficient resource management,



CHAIRMAN'S REVIEW REPORT:

The Board of Directors (the Baard) of Elahi Coton Mills Limited (ELCM) has performed their duties diligently
in upholding the best interest of shareholders of the Company and has managed the atfairs of the Company in un
effective and efficient manner. The Board has exercised its powers and has performed its duties as stated in the
Companies Act 2017 (previously Companies Ordinance 1984) and Listed Companies {Code of Corporute
Governance) Regulations, 2014,

Further, the Board during the year ended June 30, 2024 played an effective role in managing the uffairs of the
Company and achieving its objectives in the following manner:

« The Board has ensured thut there is adequate representation of Executives, non-executive, female and
independent directors on the Board und its committees as required under the Code and that members of the
Board and its respective committees has adequate skill, experience and knowledge 1o manage the affairs ol the
Company;

« The Board has developed and put in place a formal and effective mechanism for an annual evaluation of its
awn performance and that of its Committees und members of the Board. On the basis of the feedback received
through this mechanism overall performance of the Board has been found to be Good und effective;

« The Board has formed an Audit and HRR Committees and has approved their respective terms of references
and has assigned adequate resources so that the commiltees perform their responsibilities diligently;

+ The Board has ensured that three Directors of the Company are exempt from Directors Training Programe due
to their qualification and experience and that the SECP has granted exemption to three Dirgetors. Two Directors
including one exempt Dircctor have taken certification under the Directors Training Program and the remaining

shall obtuin certification under the DTP program in due course of time:

« The Board has ensured that the meetings of the Board and its committee were held with the requisite quorum
and that the minutes of all the meatings (including committees) are appropriately recorded and maintained:

« The Board has developed a code of conduct setting forth the professional standards and corporate values
adhered through the Company and have developed significant policies for smooth functioning:

* All the significant issues throughout the year were presented before the Board or ils committess to strengthen
and formalize the corporate decision making process;

« The Board has ensured that the adequate system of internal control is in place:

+ The Board has prepared and approved the Director’s report and has ensured that the directors’ report is
published with the quarterly and annual financial statement of the Company and the content of the directors’
report are in accordance with the requirement of applicable laws and regulations;

= The Board has ensured that adequate information is shared among its members in a timiely manner and the
Board members are kept abreast of developments between meetings,

+ The Bourd has exercised its powers in light of the power assigned to the Board in ecordance wilh the relevant
baws and regulation applicable on the Company.

Based on aforementioned it can reasonubly be stated that Board of Elahi Cotton Mills Limited has played
instrumental role in ensuring that corporate objectives are achieved in line with the expectation of shareholders
and other important stakeholders,

Acknowledgenient %
On behalf of thie Board, 1 appreciate untiring efforts of our employees and express gratitude to all stakeholders

valued customers for their continued cooperation and support.

Seplember 23, 2024



ELAHI COTTON MILLS LIMITED

NOTICE OF 54™
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that 54" Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of the Company will be held at

the Registered Office of the Company at 270-Sector 1/9, Industrial Area, Islamabad on October 25, 2024 at
10,00 a.m. to transact the following business:-

2]
=

To Confirm the minutes of the 53* Annual General Meeting.

To consider, approve and adopt the Chairman's Review Report, the Reports of Directors and
Auditors together with Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended June 30,
2024.

To appoint Auditors of the Company for the next financial year and to fix their remuneration. The
Audit Commitiee and Board of Directors have recommended for reappointment of M/s. BDO
Ebrahim & Co, Chartered Accountants, Islamabad as external Auditors.

To transact any other ordinary business of the Company with the prior permission of the Chairman,

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

Islamabad, &A
Oetober 03, 2024,

(MAHFO ZELﬁII}
Chief Executive

NOTES:

In order to Tacilitate and for the safety and well-being of the shareholiders, the Company in addition to convening u
physical meeting, has also arranged the attendance of the sharcholders virtually through video link facility. The
shureholders whu are interested in atiending the AGM proceedings online may send the below information along with
the valid copy of both sides of CNIC with the subject “Registration for AGM of Elahi Cotton Mills Limited™ at
clihicottoniigmail.com for their appointed proxy’s verification, Such information should be sent from their duly
registered valid emall 1D for the registration purposes latest by October 21, 2024,

Shareholder’s Folio / No. of CNIC No. Cell No. Registered
MNarme CIC No, shares held Ermail 112

A detailed procedure shall be communicated through the email dircetly 10 the shareholders who have provided their
valid el 1125 and the same shall be placed at the Company's website; hittps:/fwww elahicotton.com in the investor
relations section. The shareholders can nlso provide their comments/suggestions for the agenda items of the AGM
the above email adidress. Members are therefore, encournged 1o attend the AGM through video link or by consolidating
their attendance through proxies.

The Share Transfer Books of the Company will be closed fram October 19, 2024 10 October 25, 2024 (buth duys
inclusive). Trapsfers received at the office of Share Registrar Mfs, Corplink (Pvt) limited, Wings Arcude. 1-K
Commercial, Model Town, Lihore: af the close of business on October 18, 2024 will be treated in time for attending the
Annual General Meeting. The Company shall arrange all protective measures to the participant in this A,

A member entitled to attend and vote in the meeting is authorized to appoint any other member @ proxy o attend. speak
and vote for him or her. In order to valid, an instrument of proxy and the power of Attorney or other authority (if any)
under which it is signed, or a notarially cenified copy of such power or Authority, must be reached the Registered
Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the time of the Mecting,

Any individual Beneticial Owner of CDC, entitled 1o vole ot this meeting must bring histher origingl CHNIC with himi/her
to prove histher identity, und in case of proxy, o copy of sharcholders atlested CNIC must be atinched with the proxy
form and shall authenticate histher identity hy showing his'her original Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) or
pusspart al the time of attending the meeting. Representatives of corporate members should bring the usual documents
required for sueh purpose.

In compliance with SECP notification No, 634(11/2014 dated July 10, 2014, the pudited finuncial statements and reports
af the Company for the year ended June 30, 2024 have been placed on the Company’s websile: wiv. efafticodio e for
the information, download and review of sharcholders,



f.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 72 of the Companics Act, 2017 and subsequent drective received from the
Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan on the subject, the Company hereby requests the physical shareholders
to Convert their Physical Shares into Book-Entry Form through Investor Accounts Services of Central Depasitory
Company or any Participant TRE Certificate-holder of the Pakistan Stock Exehange Limited,

Membiers are requested to immediately inform the Company or our Share Registrar M/S. Corplink (Pv) Limited, Wings
Arcade. 1-K, Commercial, Model Town, Lahore, of any change in thelr registered address and provide valid and legihle
photaeopics of CNIC, if nat provided earlier,

Number of Dividend amount perfaining to various sharcholders are lying outstanding/uncloimed. List of such
sharcholders is avuilable at Company’s website www elahicotron.com. Such shareholders are requested to contac) Share
Registrar of the Company (it the above mentioned address) or Company Secretary, for any further dewil for payment
thereof.

Pursisant to SECP. Cireular No. 10 of 2014 dated May 21, 2014, if Company receives Consent Form from at least five
miembers or any member holding aggregate 10% or more shareholding restding ot peographical location 10 purticipate in
the meeting through video confirence at least 10 days prior to the date of meeting, the Company shall arrange video
conference facility in that ity subject to availability of such facility in that city. To avail this facility please provide
fullowlng information und submi 1o registered office of the Company:

[/We of heing u member of Elahi Cotton Mills Limited, holding
ordinary shares as per Register Folion/CDE Account Na, hereby opt for video conference facility
al Signature of Member(s)

The Compuny™s Annual Audited Financial Statements for the year ended June 3, 2024 along with Directors and Auditirs
Iteports are available on the Company’s website al www elgficotion com. Alternatively, sharcholders eun aceess the
financial statements by seanning the QR code. However shareholders may request 1o provide hard copy of the Annual
Aceounis.




T M1 'E
DIRECTORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

The Directors of the Company are pleased to present the 54" Annual Report which includes the audited financial
statements of the Company together with the auditors’ report therean for the year ended June 30, 2024,

Finaneial Results

The principal business activity of the Company is 10 manufacture and sale of Pure Polyester Yam. During the
year under review, the Company registered a turnover of R, 960,658 million as compared to Rs, 801 206 million
in the preceding vear showing increase of Rs. 159.362 million (19.89%) whereas the cost of sales increased from
Rs, 775.084 million to Rs. 957.924 million showing increase of Rs. 182,840 million (23.50%). The Company
eurned gross profit of Rs, 2.734 million as compared to gross profit of Rs. 26,212 million in the previous yedr.
The increase in turnover as compared 10 previous year s due to increase in the prices of finished goods. The
financial results of the Company for the year under review are as under:

RUPEES IN

MILLION
Sales Q60658
Cost of sales G57.924
Gross profit 2.734
Administrative expenses 14.810
Selling & other operating expenses 2.841
Other income (0.646
Finmnee cost 0432
Loss hefore income tax and minimum tx 14,703
Minimum tax 12.013
Lozs belore income 1ax 26,716
Ineome Tax 0.976
LLoss after taxation 25.740
Loss per share (Rs.) 19.80

The Company incurred loss before income tax and minimum tax of Rs. 14.703 million as compared to profit of
Rs. 9.430 million in the last year and loss after caxation of Rs, 25.740 million as compared to profit of Rs. 0820
million. The loss incurred by the Company s due to increase “n cost of sales mainly in raw material, salary &
wages and power charges. Due to excessive electric shuldown the Company has closed one shift throughout the
year and hence could not utilized 100% capacity, During the year the Company could not make payment ol
current portion of loan from Directors of Rs. 61.329 million due to financial constraints.

The auditors have drawn attention to Note 1.2 in the financial statements that the Company's current linbilities
exceded its current assets by Rs. 63,092 million. The Company has accumulated loss of Rs. 69,610 million that
exceeds the issued, subscribed and paid up capital by Rs. 56.610 million. These conditions indicute the existence
of 4 masterial unceriainty that cast doubt about the Company's ubility to continue as a LOINE CONCErT.

During the year under review, the Company generated cash amounting 10 Rs. 4.101 million from its operating
activities afier meating its cash outflows over the year, The Management is making every effort 1o minimize the
impact theough improve efficiency and better marketing, The Sponsor Directors are continuously supporting in
the form of funds as and when required by the Company. During the year, the Sponser Direciors provided
interest free loan to the Company amounting to' Rs. 24,000,000/~ Furthermore, the Management has neither
intention nor the necessity of liquidation or ceasing manufacturing operation in foreseeuble future, So, with the
successful efforts of the Management, the Company will continue s 4 going concern.

Dividend:

The Directors of the company do not recommend any cash dividend/honus shares 1o the shareholders as the
Company has incurred loss and also has accumulated loss.



Auditors:

The present Auditors M/S. BDO Ebrahim & Company, Chartered Accountants have retired and being eligible,
offered themselves for re-uppointment. The Board of Directors, on recommendations of the Audit Committee has
proposed appointment of M/S, BDO Fhrahim & Company, Chartered Accountunis as auditors of the Company
for the vear ending June 30, 2025.

Pattern of Sharcholding:

A statement showing the pattern of shareholding by the sharehalders of the Company s on June 30, 2024 is
annexed herewith.

Future Prospeets and Outlook:

The Management expects the coming year 1o be an uncertain and challenging one, The pngoing political
instability hus adversely affected Pakistan's ceonomy, This situation has further been compounded due 0
increasing trend in the prices of raw material and electric tariff. All this has resulted in slow down of econoiny
and has put a dent on the textile seclor,

Corporate Social Responsibility

We are alsy committed 1o Corporate Social Responsibilities (CSR) and integrating sound social practices in our
day to day business activities. CSR ie important part of who we are and how we operate. We measure our
suctess not only in terms of financial eriteria but also in building customer satisfaction and supporting the
communities we serve. During the year the: Company paid Rs, S00.000/~ 1o Sindh Institute of Urology and
Transplant, an approved NPO, for the purpose of tresiment of poor and needy patients

Health Satety and Environment

The Manasgement of the Company is aware of its responsibilities to provide safe and healthy working
environment o our associates and give highest priority to it. Our safety culture is founded on the premise that all
injuries are preventable if due care is taken. Continual efforts for provision of safe, healthy and comfortable
working conditions for the employees are miade. We follow up and investigate on all incidents und injuries to
address their root causes. We believe that safety and health is a journey of continuous improvement and etérnal
diligence. We will continue to take steps to improve the safety and health of all ef our associates. Chur production

facility does not discharge any harmful material.
Diversity, Equity and Inclusion

The Company is dedicated 10 fostering a diverse, equitable, inclusive, and supportive environment where all
individuals are valued and respected. There is no discrimination of caste, religion, color, maritl status or gender,
Our focus is on principles of Equal Opportunity Employer and fostering an inclusive workplace that reflects
gender diversity and equality.

Gender Pay Gap

The Company regularly undertakes an internal analysis to check whether gender pay parity is aligned based on
cadres, levels and comparable positions, and makes adjustments to ensure that women are paid an average the
same as men in the same cadres. As such, the Company believes that there is no significant disparity between
what women and men are paid at comparable cadres and levels.

Internal Finaneial Control

The Board has adopted effective policies and procedures for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
husinass, the safepuarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors; the accuracy und
campleteness of the accounting records and timely preparation of reliable financial stutements. The internal audit
department of the Company conducls audit regularly.



Composition of Board
The Board of Directors a5 at June 30, 2024 consists of
Total number of Directors:
Male &

Female |

Composition;

Ahmed Shaffi, M. Azcem Afzal Hashmi
Muhboob Elahi, Farrukh Ahmed,
Mahlooz Elahi, Mahmood Elahi
Saming Begum

i Independent Directors
(ii) MNon-execulive Directors
(i) Executive [irectors

{iv)  Female Director

— - B2

Committees of the Board
The numes of Members of Board Commitlees are as under:

Audit Commitlee:

ii) Farrukh Ahmed
(i) Mahboob Ehihi
(iii) Ahmed Shaffi

Human Kesources & Remuneration Committee:

1] Mahmood Elahi
(it} Farrukh Ahmed
] M. Azeem Afzal Hashmi

Significant Features of Directors’ Remuneration

The Board of Directors has approved a formal policy for remuneration of Executive and Non-executive
Directors, as recommended by the Human Resource and Remuneration Commitiee, As per policy, the Company
will not pay any remuneration 1o non-executive directors and independent directors except fees for attending the
meetings of the Board and its committees. The detail of aggregate amount of remuneration separately of
executive and non-executive directors is attached in the annual report,

Risks and Opporiunities

Elahi Cotton Mills Limited takes risks and creates opportunities in the normal course of business, Taking risk is
important o remain competitive and ensure sustainable success. Our risk and opportunity management
encompass un cffective framework to conduet business in a well-controlled environment where risk is mitigated
and opportunitics are availed. Each risk and opporiunity is properly weighted and considered before making any
choice: Decisions are formulated only if opportunities outweigh risks, Following is the summary of risks and
strategics to mitigate those risks:

Business Risks
The Company faces a number of following business risks;
Polyvester Price Risk

There is always a risk of upward shift in the polyester prices in local and international markets. The Company
mitigates this risk by the procurement of the polyester in bulk depending upon the availability of funds.



Demand and Price

We face the risk of competition and decline in demand of our products in local markets, We minimize this risk
by building strong relations with customers, broadening our customer base, without compromising on quality
and providing timely deliveries to customers.

Encrzy Availability and Cuost
The rising cost and un-availability of energy i.e. electricity shortage is a major threat 1o manufaciuring industry.

The Company is unable 1o achieve the installed capacity due to excessive electric shut down. The Company is
also unable to mitigate this risk as it is beyond the Company's control.

Financial Wisks
The Company Taces the following financial risks:
Credit risk

The Company's credit exposure to credit risk relates 1o its trade debts. This risk is mitigated by the fact that
majority of our customers have u strong linancial standing and we have a long standing business relationship
with all our customers, We do not expect nonperformance by our customers; hence, the credit risk is minimal.

Liguidity pisk

It is at the minimum due to the availability of funds from the sponser’s Directors in order to meet liabilities when
due under both normal and stressed conditions.

Capital risk

When managing capital, it is our objective to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern in
arder to generate profits for providing returns for shareholders and benefits to other.

Price Risk of Financial Instruments

The Company is not exposed to price risk since there are no financial instruments whose fair value or future cash
flow will Muctuate because of changes in market prices.

Corporate Governance
The Directors are pleased 1o report that:

) The Financial Statements prepared by the Management present its state of affairs fairly, the results of its
aperutions, cash Nows and changes in equity.

by Proper Books of Accounts have been maintained.

¢) Appropriate Accounting Policies have been consistently applied in preparation of linancial statements
and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

d) International Financial Reporting Standards as applicable in Pakistan have been followed in preparation
of Financial Statements.

) The system of Internal Control is sound in design and has been effectively impiemented and monitored.
fi The Management has devised a plan to enable the Company 10 continue as a going concern,

@) There is no reported instance of any material departure from the best practices of Corporate Governance.



h) Significant deviation from last year in operating results of the Company and reasons thereof has been
explained.

i} The key operating and financial data for the Jast six years is anmexed.

i) There are no outstanding statutory payments on account of taxes, dutics, levies and charges excepl as
shown in notes to the accounts,

k) The Company is operating as un-funded Gratuity scheme which was not invested and was retained for
business of the Company.

1) Thirteen meetings of the Board of Directors, four meetings of the Audit Committee and three mectings
of the Human Resource & Remuneration Committee were held during the year. The anendance of each
Director at the meetings is as under: -

Name of Director Baard Mesii Audit HR&R
..... ard Vieclings Commiltee Commitiee

Mr. Mahboob Elubi 13 4 MiA

Mr. Mahfooz Elahi 13 NIA N/A

M. Malunood Elahi 12 MN/A 1

Mr; Farrukl Ahmed i 4 3

Mr. Alimed Shafti g 4 NiA

Mrs. Samina Begum 10 NiA NIA
Muhanunad Azeem Afzal Hashmi q NUA 3

m) Three Directors of the Company are exempt from Directors Training Program due to their qualification
and relevant experience and SECP has granted exemption to these Directors. Two Board members
including one exempl Director has attained certification of Directors Training Program. The remuining
directors shall obtain certification under the DTP program in due course of time,

n) The puttern of shareholding as required by the code along-with trading of shares by Directors, executives
and their spouses has been included in this annual report.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:
The Board of Directors is pleased to record word of thanks 1o its members. The Staff — management remained

pleasantly co-operative. | together with fellow Directors, wish to acknowledge our gratitude to the staff members
for performing their duties.

ON BEHALF OF THE BGARD
(MAHFOGZ ELAHL) (MAHMOOD ELATL
Chiel Exeoutive Dhirector

Islamabad.
September 23, 2024
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ELAHI COTTON MILLS LIMITED
STATAMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES
(CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

The company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:

]

The total number of directors are seven as per the following:
a Male: 6 b Female: |

The composition of board is as follows:

| Category Names
Independent Directors Ahmed Shaffi, M. Azeem Afeal Hashmi
Executive Directors Mahtooz Elahi, Mahmood Elahi
Non-Executive Directors | Mahboob Elahi, Farrukh Ahmad
Female Director Samina Begum

Fractional figures on account of Independent Directors and Executive Directors have been rounded off to
the nearest digit.

The Directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a Director on more than seven listed
companies, including this company.

The Company has prepared a "Code of Conduct” and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken
to disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting policies and procedures.

The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies
of the company. A complete record of the particulars of significant policies along with the dates on
which they were approved or amended has been maintained.

All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken
by board/sharcholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these regulations.

The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected
by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of Act and the regulations
with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of the Board.

The Board of directors has a formal policy and transparent procedure for remuneration of directors in
accordance with the Act and Regulations.

Three Directors of the Company are exempt from Directors Training Program due to their qualification
and relevant experience and SECP has granted exemption to these three Directors. Two Board
members including one exempt Director has attained certification of Directors Training
Program. The remaining Directors shall obtain certification under the DTP program in due course of
lime,

There was no new appointment of CFO & Company Secretary. New Head of Internal Audit was
appointed during the year and Board has approved the appointment including the remuneration and
terms & conditions of appointment and complied with relevant requirements of the Regulations.

Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements before
approval of the Board.

The Board has formed Committees comprising of members given below:



|

a)  Audit Committee;
* Ahmed Shaffi — Chairman
* iMahboob Elahi — Member
= Farrukh Ahmed — Member

b) Human Reseurce and Remuneration Commitiee;
* M, Azeem Afzal Hashmi- Chairman
« Mahmood Elahi -~ Member
* Farrukh Ahmed — Member

The terms of reference of the aforesaid Committees have been formed, documented and advised 1o the
Committee for compliance.

The frequency of meetings of the Committees was as per following:

a) Audit Committee

* | st Quarter: Imeeting.
» 2nd Quarter: | meeting.
* 3rd Quarter; | meeting.
= 4th Quarter; | meetings.

) Human Resource and Remuneration Committes

* |5t Quarter: -

= 2nd Quarter; -

= 3rd Quarter: | meeting

» dth Quarter: 2 meetings.

The Board has set up an effective internal audit function that is considered suitably qualified and
experienced for the purpose and is conversant with the policies and procedures of the company.

The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating
under the quality control review program of the ICAP and registered with Audit Oversight Board of
Pakistan, that they or any of the partners of the firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold shares
of the company and that the firm and all its partners are in compliance with International Federation of
Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the ICAP.

The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other
services except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the
auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

We confirm that all other requirements of Regulations 3,6,7,8,27,32,33 and 36 of the Regulations have
been complied with.

We confirm that the Company has complied with respect to all other material requirements of the
Regulations.

h\ &A ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD _

> 7 P A Y
(MAHFOOZ ELAHI) (MAHMOOD ELAHI)
Chief Executive Director

lslamabad.
September 25, 2024
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Tel: +93 51 240 44581-5 Ird F|D'_II'.
B D O Fax: +92 51 260 4468 Saeed Flazs,
www, bdo.com.pk 22-Eust Blue Area
i m ey ) Istamabad 44000,
Paklstan

REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS ON STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE LISTED
COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of
Elahi Cotton Mills Limited (the Company) for the year ended June 30, 2024 in accordance with the
requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the
Company. Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status
of the Company's compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to
highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited
primarily te inquiries of the Company's personnel and review of various documents prepared by the
Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit
approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal
control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal
controls, the Company's corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and
approval, its related party transactions and also ensure compliance with the requirements of
section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017, We are only required and have ensured compliance of this
requirement to the estent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of
Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not carried out procedures to
assess and determine the Company's process for identification of related parties and that whether
the related party transactions were undertaken at arm's length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the
Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material
respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the

year ended June 30, 2024,
‘,’EEEEW

CHARTERED ACCOUNTAMNTS
DATED: September 27, 2024 Engagement Partner; Atif Riaz
UDIN: CR202410060CF7IDKwJH

ISLAMABAD

BDO Ebrahim & Co, Chartered Accountants
BDD-Ebrahwn & Co., & Pakistan regatesed parlveiship fiem, 1.8 mombor af D06 INLErnalong) Linvied
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[el: B2 51 160 44675 gl Floor,
Fax: =92 51 260 4468 Sacod Plaza,
wivww, bida, corm. phk 21-East Blue Area,

e lslamabad-4+4000,
Pakistan

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ELAHI COTTON MILLS LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of ELAHI COTTON MILLS LIMITED (the Company),
which comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2024, and the statement of profit
or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement
of cash flows far the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
material accounting policy information and ether explanatory information, and we state that we have
obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were

necessary for the purposes of the audit,

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes
forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan
and give the infarmation required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required
and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as al June 30, 2024
and of the less and other comprehensive loss, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year
then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (1SAs) as applicable
in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinian.

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to Note 1.2 in the financial statements which indicates that as of June 30, 2024,
the Company's current liabilities exceeded its current assets by Rs. £3.092 million. The accumulated
losses have exceeded the issued, subscribed and paid up capital by Rs. 56,610 million as at June 30,
2024 and accumulated losses as of that date amounted to Rs. 69.610. These conditions, along with
other matters as set forth in Note 1.2, indicate the existence of material uncertainty which may cast
doubt about the Company's ability ta continue as going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect
of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of mest significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, arnd

we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. G
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We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated

in our report.
$. No | Key audit matters How the matter was addressed in nur|
. audit
1. | Revenue Recognition o _
Refer Note 5.15 to the financial statements. | Our audit procedures included considering
the appropriateness of the Company's
The Company focuses on revenue as a key | revenue recognition accounting policies and
performance measure which could create | assgssing compliance with the pelicies in
an incentive for revenue to be recognized | accordance with the applicable financial
before the completion of performance | reporting framework,
r::buggtmn. re.sultln.g in a significant ﬂs.k i ‘Control testing over the point of
associated with revenue from an audit transfer of risk and rewards was
procedure. supported by substantive  audit
Due to the significant risk associated with procedures including, amongst others.
revenue recognition and the work effort |«  Performing analytical tests on the
from the audit team, the recognition of revenue,
revenue is considered to be a key audit ; ,
+ Testing a sample of sales transactions
matter. i
around year end to ensure inclusion in
the correct Period.

« Testing a sample of sales and trade
debts at year end by agreeing a sample
of open invoices at year end to
subsequent receipts from custemers,
and

« Assessing the adequacy of related
disclosures in accordance with the
applicable financial reporting
framework.

2, | Valuation of Stock in trade )
Refer notes 5.4, 5.25.1 and 9 to the | Our audit procedures in this area included,
financial statements. amongst others;
As at 30 June 2024 the company's stock in | «  Attending management's  inventory
trade is amounted to Rs. 33.182 million, counts and observed the process,
consisting 13% of the total assets. Several including  abserving the  prouess
estimates and judgments are involved in the implemented by management to
valvation of stock-in-trade, In determining identify and monitor obsolete stock.
the net realizable values, and in assessing
the appropriate level of provisioning | . Evaluated the appropriateness of the
required for the stock in trade. This includes basis for identifying obsolete stock in
the assessment of available facts and trade and the accuracy of the provision
circumstances, the physical condition of the for obsolete stock in trade as assessed
stock in trade, market selling prices, and

the estimated selling cost of the stock-in-

by management. We have tested the

BDO Ebrahim & Co. Charterad Accountants
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5. No | Key audit matters How the matter was addressed in our

audit
trade. The significance of the balance accuracy of the ageing analysis of stock
coupled with the estimates and judgments in trade on a sampte basis.

involved in their valuation has resulted in
the stock in trade being considered as a key | » Comparing the net realizable values, to
audit matter. the cost of finished goods to assess
whether any adjustments are required
to value inventory in accordance with
applicable accounting and reporting
standards, and |

s Assessing the adequacy of the related
disclosures in the notes to the financial
statements. |

information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Mariagement is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not include the f inancial statements and our
auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not caver the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated, If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the
requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matlers related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseging the Company's financial reporting process.
7
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the ecanamic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as appticable in Pakistan, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also;

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from errar,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern. |f we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our cpinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and pther
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards. gj vy
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From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determing those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumnstances, We determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017
{(XIX of 2017);

by the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of
comprehnnsive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows
together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017
(%X of 2017} and are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

¢) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the
purpose of the Company's business; and

d) no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIIl of 1980).

The engagement partrner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Atif Riaz.

— Wr—k Fo

BDO EBRAHIM & CO.
DATED: September 27, 2024 CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
UDIN: AR202410060KFefXalND
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ELAHI COTTON MILLS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT JUNE 30, 2024

ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Iong term security depasits
|.oans and advances

CURRENT ASSETS
Short term prepayments
Stores, spares and loose tools
Stock in trade
Trade debts
Loang and advances
Shart term investment
Prepaid levy
Cash and bank balances

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital
Revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment
Accumulated losses

NON-CURRENT L1A BILITIES
Staff retirement benefits - gratuity
Deferred taxation
Financiul labilities
Long term loan from direclors

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current portion of long tern loan from directors
Short term loan from directors
Trade and other payables
Financial liabilitics
Unelaimed dividend

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Note

b

u
44
I
12
13
14

15

6

17
18
9
20

20
21

g o)

19

23

The annexed notes from 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statenents. 7‘5‘3

I‘ \11; \ 'r-ﬁ- ; L35

CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
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2024 2023
Rupees Hupees
177,892,062 158,144,784

918,810 918,810
5,052,750 4.379.750
183,863,622 163,443,344
374,305 | 722,842 |
3,939,143 3,420,249
33,181,882 27,036,875
19,982,867 29,202,712
514,008 571,910
598,335 503,965
3,001,431 923,093
13,835,204 12,861,216
73,427,175 73,242,862
259,290,797 238,686,206
13,000,000 3,000,000
141,098,316 134,831,533
(69.609,891) (44.886.434)
84,488,425 102,945,099
32,658,401 34,152,146
- 10,220,327
3,625,154 1,099,129

= _J
36,283,555 35.471,602
61,320,471 | 61,849,546
39,350,000 15,350,000
31,647,392 21,869,557
5,924,283 932,731
267,671 267.67)

135,518,817 100.269.505

259,290,797 238,686,206

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER



ELAHI COTTON MILLS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Sales - nel

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Administralive expenses

Selling and distribution expenses

Other operating charges

Operating (Loss)/profit

Other income

Finance cost

(Loss)/profit before income lax and minimum tax
Minimum tax

Loss before income tax

Income tax

(Loss)/profit after taxation

(Loss)/earming per share - basic and diluted

The annexed notes from 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial stateme

iy Sai,','.-:-\ﬁl (A |

V)
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Nole

31

(8 ]
tad
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DIRECTOR

2024 2023
Rupees Rupees
960,658,143 801,296,425
(957,924,139)  (775.,084,337)

2,734,006 26,212,088

14,809,726 12,985,643

2,019,100 1.975.000

822,394 1,642,148
(17.651,220) (16,602,791)
(14,917.214) 9,609,297

640,520 306.726

(432,139) (486,070)
(14,702,833) 0,429,953

(12,013,350) _ (10,018,529)
(26,716,183) (588.576)

976,462 1 408.657
(25,739.721) 820,081

(19.80) (.63

———

—————
—_———— ———

s, y¥ -

par. it
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ELAHI COTTON MILLS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2024

2024 2023
Note Rupees Hupees

(Loss)/profit after taxation {25.739,721) 820,081
Other eomprehensive income
Jtems that will not be subsequently ¢lassified 1o profit or loss

Loss on remeasurement of defined benetit liability 17 I___ (1,960,818)| |I (2,230, lﬁ@l]
Total other comprehensive loss for the year (1,960,818) (2,230,168)
Total comprehensive loss for the year {27,700.539) (1410087}

The annexed notes from 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements. ;ﬁ;"f
\ --:L,ﬁ'-_'.I|I ﬂ\.ﬂ- Ny I-.l-l..j; "'""\’;r\.._ ._r.!_:. L‘::-_'- { o o J. T:H _[ o
CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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ELAHI COTTON MILLS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

2024 20123
Note Rupees Rupees
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(LossWprofit before income tax and minimum tax {14,702,833) 5,429,953
Adjustments for non-cash income and expenses:
Depreciation 6.1 & 6.5 6,021,702 5,336,055
Provision for gratuity 9,745,587 7,053,290
Finaneial charges 29 432,139 486,070
Profit on short term investment 12 (94,370} (3,965)
| 402,225 22 501,403
Changes in working capital
Decrease [ (inerease) in current assets
Stores, spares and loose tools {518,894} (506,738)
Stock in trade {6,143.007) (9,140.424)
Trade debts 5,219,845 (12,415,940)
Loans and advances 57,902 11,398.750
Short term prepayments 348,537 {395,110

2,962,383 (11.059.462)
Inerease in current liabilities

Financial liabilities 7.250.308 -
Trade and other payahles 9,777,835 4,802,553
17,028,143 4,802,553
Cash generated from operations 21,392.751 16,244,494
Income tax paid (14,091.688) (10,812,015}
Giratuity paid (3,200,150} (4,156,740)
Net cash generated from operating activitics 4,100,913 1,275.739

CASH FLOWS FiROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 6.l (25,768,980 -

Loans given to employces {673,000} (406,750)

Short term investment - (S00,000)
Net cash used in investing activities (26.441.980) (906,750)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment of long term loan from directors (520,073) (850,000}
Finance cost paid 29 (164,870) (77.591)
[ case paviments - (1,200,000}
Short term loan from directors 24,000,000 6,250,000
Net cash generated from financing activities 23,315,055 4,122,409
73,088 4,491,398
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 12,861,216 83649818
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 14 _— 13,835,204 12,861,216
The annexed notes [rom | to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements. ‘
| — - ’ " w,,-l"r]",!rlfll L;v
Wl Lotsy Al e Ll L Lo o
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ELAHI COTTON MILLS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNLE 30, 2024

1.1

3.1

STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

The Company was incorporated as a public limited company on June 22, 1970 under the
repealed Companies Act, 1913 (now the Companies Act, 2017) and is listed on Pakistan Stock
Exchange Limited, The principal business of the Company is manufacture and sale of yam.

As of June 30. 2024, the Company’s current liabilities exceeded its current asscls by Rs.
63.002 million (2023: Rs. 25,027 million). The Company has accumulated loss of Rs. 69.610
nillion (2023: Rs. 44,886 million). The Company’s accumulated losses exceeded the issued,
subseribed and paid up capital by Rs. 56.610 million (2023: Rs. 31.886). Thesc conditions
indicate the existence of material uncertainty which may cast doubt about the Company's
ability 1o continue as going concern.

These financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis without any adjustment
to assets and liabilities based on the profitable future projections. The management is also
confident of improving profitability through streamlining the operations of the Company and
based on projections. demonstrate increases in revenue and cash flows and hence improvement
in the financial performance and position of the company, for the year ending June 30, 2024
and onwards.

GEOGRAPHICAL LOCATION AND ADDRESSES OF BUSINESS UNITS

The registered office of the Company is situated at 270, sector 1-9, Industrial Arca, Islamabad.
The mill (plant) of the Company is located at Mandra - Chakwal Road, Tehsil Gujar Khan,
District Rawalpindi, Pakistan.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the approved accounting
and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The approved accounting and reporting

standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

_ Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issucd by the International Accounting
Standerds Board ( TASB ) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017, and

. Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Islamic Financial Accounting Srandards (IFAS) issued by mstitute of Chartered
Accountants of Pukistan as are notified under the Companies Act, 2017. ﬂg »
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3.3

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the
IFRS Standards, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have

been followed.

Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for
certain fixed assets which have been stated at revalued amount and recognition of certain stall
retirermnent benefits at present value while short term investments arc carried at fair value,

These financial statements have been prepared following accrual basis of accounting except
for cash flow information.

The preparation of these fnancial statements in conformity with approved accounting
standards requires the management 10 make estimates. assumptions and use | udgments that
affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liubilities and income and
expenses. Estimates, assumptions and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on
historic experience and other factors including reasonable expectations of future events.
Revisions 6 aceounting estimates are recognized prospectively commencing from the period
of revision.

Judgmenis and estimates made by the management that may have a significant risk of material
adjustments to the financial statements in subsequent years are discussed in note 528,

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Company's functional
and presentation currency,

Key judgements and estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the accounting und reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan requires the use of certain critical accounting esiimates. In
addition. it requires management 10 exercise judgement in the process of applying the
Company's accounting policies. The areas involving a high degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are signilicant to the financial
giatements, are documented in the following accounting policies and notes, and relate

primarily w:

. Useful lives, residual values and depreciation method of property. plant and equipment —
Note $.253& 6

- Provision for impairment of inventories - Note 5.25.1 &9

. Provision for impairment ol stores and spares - Note 5254 & 8

- Obligation of defined benefit obligation - Note 5.25.5 & 17.1

- Provision for expected credit losses — Note 52564 10

. Estimation of contingent liabilities - Note 5257 & 23/,
‘.él&f
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Change in accounting policy

During the vear, the Company changed its accounting policy of recognizing the portion of
income tax paid or payable for the year under the Ordinance, not based on the taxable profits
of the Company, as a Levy under IFRIC-21/IAS-37 instead of the current income tax for the
year under [AS-12,

The management believes that the new policy provides reliable and more relevant information
to the users of the financial statements.

The change in accounting policy has been accounted for retrospectively in accordance with
International Accounting Standard 8: “Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates
and Errors’. As disclosed in note 5.10 and 31 to these financial statements, the Company has
adopted the approach of recognising minimum, final and super-tax not based on taxable profit
as a levy, with any excess recognised as current income tax in statement of profit or loss.
Since, the Company is expected 1o remain in non-tax/levy regime for foreseeable future where
the effective tax rate would be zero. Accordingly, no deferred tax is required to be recorded in
these financial statements. There is, however, no material impact on the financial statements of
the prior vears, therefore the adjustment due to change in accounting policy has been recorded
in current year,

The impact of adjustments is as follows.

Impact after change of accounting policy is as follows:

Desctintioe Balance as @t Adjustment Balance us at
P June 30, 2023 during the year June 30, 2024
Statement of financial position:

Dieferred tax 2tion 10,220,327 (10,220,327) -
Reyelaton surplus O property, 134,831,533 6,266,783 141,098,316
plant and equipment

Statement of profit or loss:

Income tax = 976,462 976,463
Nlinimum tax - (12,013,350} {12.013,350)

Had there been no change in accounting policy, the carrying amounts had been as follows:

D oot Bulauce as at Adjustment Balance as at

eIcripean June 30, 2023 during the year June 30, 2024

Statement of fipancial position:

Deferred taxation 10,220,327 1,554,340 L1, 779667

Revaluation .r_t:rplus on property, 134,831,533 (2.113,728) 132,717,805

plant and equipment

Statement of profit or loss:

Income tax - (13,572,690} { 13,572,690)
ydoe
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4.1

APPLICATION OF NEW STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS
TO PUBLISHED APPROVED ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING STANDARDS

New accounting standards, amendments and IFRS interpretations that are effective for
the year ended June 30, 2024

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are effective for the year ended June
30, 2024. These standards, amendments and interpretations are cither not relevant to the
Company's operations or did not have significant impact on the {inancial statements other than
certain additional disclosures.

Effective date
(annual periods
beginning on or

after)

Amendments o IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' and IFRS

Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements - Disclosure of

Accounting Policies January 01, 2023
Amendments to IAS 8 ‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting

Estimates and Errors' - Definition of Accounting Estimates January 01, 2023
Amendments to 1AS 12 'Income Taxes' - Deferred Tax related 1o Assels

and Liabilities arising from a single transaction January 01, 2023
Amendmients to IAS 12 'Income Taxes' - Temporary exception to the

requirements regarding deferred tax asscts and liabilities related to pillar

two income taxes January 01, 2023

The Company ndopted the narrow-scope amendments 10 the International Accounting Standard
(IAS) 1. Presentation of Financial Statements which have been effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023, Although the amendments did not result in any
changes to accounting policy themselves, they impacted the accounting policy information
disclosed in the financial statements.

The amendments require the disclosure of ‘material’ rather than ‘significant’ accounting
policies. The amendments also provide puidance on the application of materiality to disclosure
of accounting policies, assisting the Company to provide useful entity-specific accounting
policy information that users need Lo understand other information in the financial statements.

Management reviewed the accounting policies and updates to the information disclosed in
Note 5 Material accounting policies (2023: Significant accounting policies) in certain instances
in line with the amendments and concluded that all its accounting policies are material for

disclosure. ﬂ{'
Tl "F
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4.2

New accounting standards, amendments and interpretations that are not yet effective.

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are only effective for accounting
periods, beginning on or after the date mentioned against each of them. These standards,
amendments and interpretations are either not relevant to the Company's operations or arc not
expected to have significant impact on the Company's financial statements other than certain

additional disclosures.

Amendments to IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' - Supplier
finance arrangements

Amendments 1o IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' -
Amendments regarding the classification and measurement of financial
instruments

Amendments to IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' - Amendments regarding
the classification and measurement of {inancial instruments

Amendments to IFRS 16 'Leases’ - Amendments to clarify how a seller-
lessee subsequently measures sale and leaseback transactions

Amendments to 1AS 1 'Presentation of Financial  Statements'
Classi{ication oi habilities as current or nen-current

Amendments 1o IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' - Non-
current habilities with covenants

Amendments to 1AS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows' - Supplier finance
arrangements

Amendments to IAS 21 'The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange
Rates' - Lack of Exchangeability

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

January (1, 2024

January 01, 2026

January 01, 2026

January 01, 2024

January 01, 2024

January 01, 2024

January 01, 2024

January 01, 2025

January 01, 2026

IFRS 1 'First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards' has been issued by
IASB effective from July 01, 2009, However, it has not been adopted yet locally by Securities

and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP)

IFRS 18 'Presentation and Disclosures in Financial Statements' has been issued by [ASB
effective from Tanuary 01, 2027. However, it has not been adopted yet locatly by SECP

IFRS 19 'Subsiciaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures' has been issued by IASB
effective from January 01, 2027, However, it has not been adopted yet locally by SECP

IFRS 17 - ‘Insurance contracts' has been notified by the IASB to be effective for annual periods
beginning on or aller January 1, 2023, However SECP has notified the timeframe for the

Fr

adoption of IFRS - 17 which will be adopted by January 01, 2026, ;
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5.1

b)

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the presentation of these financial statements are
set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

Property, plant and equipment
Operating fixed assets

Operating fixed assets except for frechold land, building and plant and machinery are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation or impairment, if any. Frechold land, building and plant and
machinery are stated at cost/revalued amount less accumulated depreciation or impairment, if
any.

Depreciation is charged on the basis of written down value method whereby cost or revalued
amount of an asset is written off’ over its useful life without taking into account any residual
value. Full month's depreciation is charged on addition, while no depreciation is charged in the
manth of disposa! or deletion of assets.

Major renewals and repairs are capitalized and the assets so replaced are retired. Minor
renewals or replacement, maintenance and repairs are charged to income as :and when incurred,
Gains or losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment are accounted for as profit or loss
for the year.

Amount equivalent to incremental depreciation charged on revalued assets is transferred from
surplus on revaluation of building and plant and machinery net of deferred taxation 1o retained
earnings (unappropriated prolit).

The assets' residual value and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if’ significant, at each
balance sheet date.

Disposal of assets is recognized when significant risks and reward incidental to the ownership
have been transferred to buyers, Gain and losses on disposal are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognized in the profit and loss accounts,

Revaluation surplus on property, plant and ¢quipment

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of land, buildings and plant and machinery
is recognized in other comprehensive income and presented as a separate component of equity
as “Revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment™, except to the extent that it reverses
a revaluation decrease for the same asset previously recognized in profit or loss, in which case
the increase is eredited to profit or loss to the extent of the decrease previously charged, Any
decrease in carrying amount arising on the revaluation of land, buildings and plant and
machinery is charged to profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, held in
the revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment relating to a previous revaluation of
that asset. The revaluation reserve is not available for distribution to the Company's
shareholders. The surplus on revaluation buildings and plant and machinery to the extent of

incremental depreciation charged is transferred to unappropriated profit G
i
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5.
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Impairment losscs

The carrying amount of the Company’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each statement of
financial position date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If such
indications exist, the assets’ recoverable amowits dre estimated in order to determine the extent
of impairment loss, if any,

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount, A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable asset group
that generates cash flows that is largely independent from other assets and group, Impairment
losses are recognized as expense in profit and loss account. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and vilue in use. Where an impairment loss is
recognized, the depreciation charge is adjusted in the future periods to allocate the asset's
revised carrying amount over its estimated useful life,

Impaired assets are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each statement of
linancial position date. Reversal of the impairment losses are restricted to the extent that asset's
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation, if no impairment losses had been recognized. A reversal of impairment loss is
recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Stores, spares and loose tools

Stores and spares are stated at cost less provision for slow moving and obsolete items. Cost is
determined by using the moving average method. ltems in transit are valued at cost
comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred thercon.

Spare parts of capital nature which can be used only in connection with an item of property,
plant and equipment are classified as tangible fixed assets under "Plant and machinery"
category and are depreciated over a time period not exceeding the useful life of the related

dasscls,

The Company reviews the carrying amount of stores and spares on a periodic basis and
provision is made for slow moving and obsolescence on periodic basis.

Stock in trade

Stock in trade, except stock in transit, are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost
18 determined as follows:

- Raw materials - alt moving average method except stock in transit
- Work in process - at cost of material plus praportionate production overheads
- Finished goods - at cost of material as above plus proportionate production overheads

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less
the estimated cost of completion and costs necessary to be incurred in order to make the sale

Stock in transit is valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges thereon. A
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5.6

5.7

5.10

Trade receivables

These are cltsified at amortized cost and are initially recognized when they are originated and
measured at fair value of consideration receivable. These assets are written off when there is
no reasonable expectation of recovery. Actual credit loss experience over pasl years is used to
base the calculation of expected credit loss.

Loans and advances

These are classified at amortized cost and are initially recogmized when they are originated and
measured at fair value of consideration receivable. These assets are written off when there is
no reasenable expectation of recovery. Actual eredit loss experience over past years is used lo
base the calculation of expected eredit loss.

Cash and bank balances

Cash in hand and at banks are carried at nonunal amounts which is the fair value of cash and
bank balances.

Share capita!

Share capital is classified as equity and recognized at the face value. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares are shown as a deduction in equity.

Stalf retirement benefits

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme for all its permanent employees who
attain the minimum qualification period for entitlement to gratuity. Contributions are made
based on actuarial recommendations and in line with the provisions of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001, The most recent actuarial valuation is carried out at August 13, 2024 using
the projected unit credit method (refer note 17). Actuarial gains and losses are recognized as
income or expense in the other comprehensive income, The Company recognizes expense in
accordance with [AS 19 "Employee Benelits".

Taxation

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in
profit or loss except 1o the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which
case it is recognized in equity.

Current

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year based on taxable
profits, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Levy

Minimum tax, final tax and super-tax not based on taxable profits are recognized as a levy in
the Profit and loss account. Any excess ol expected income tax paid or payable for the year
under the Ordinance over the amount designated as a levy is then recognized as current income
e 1n the 1 38 gocount,
tax expense 11 the profit and loss account -ﬂ?ﬁﬁ
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5.11

512

5.13

Deferred

Deferred tax is computed using the balance sheet hability method providing for temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
period when the liability is settled based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
¢nacted at the balance sheet date.

A deferred tax asset is recognized only 1o the extent that it is probable that future taxable profil
will be available and the credits can be utihzed.

Prior years

The taxation charge for prior years represents adjustments to the tax charge relating 1o prior
years, arising from assessments and changes in estimates made during the current year, except
otherwise stated,

Borrowing

Loans and borrowings are recorded at the amortized cost unless classified as fair value through
profit and loss they are initially recognized when they are received and measured at amortized
cost which is fair value of consideration . Mark up, interest and other borrowing costs are
charged to profit and loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Borraowing cost on long term finances which are specitically obtained for the acquisition of
qualifving assets are capitalized up to the date of commencement of commercial production on
the respective assets, All other borrowing costs are charged to profit and loss account in the
period in which these are incurred,

Trade and other payables

Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are carried at cost which is the fair value of the
consideration to be paid in the future for the goods and services reeeived, whether or not billed
to the Company.

Provisions

A provision is recognized in the balance sheet when the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required 1o settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting future cash flows at
appropriate discount rate where ever required. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet
dute and adjusted to reflect current best es:imalc."gfm
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L.cases

Leases are recognized as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which
the leased asset is available for use by the Company. Each lease payment is allocated between
the liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to the statement of profit or loss over
the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance
of the liahility for each period. The right-of-use assel 1s depreciated over the shorter of the
asset's useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. Payments associated with leases
with a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets are recognized as an
expense in the statement of profit or loss.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises of the fair value of the consideration received or receivable from the sale
of goods and services in the ordinary course of the Company's activities. Revenue from sale of
goods is shown net of sales tax, Revenue is recognized when the company completes it
performance obligation in the contract. Due to nature of the business, revenue is recognized al
point at time basis.

The revenue arising from different activities of the Company is recognized on the following
basis:

- Local sales are recorded on dispatch of goods to customers.
- Scrap sales are recognized when delivery is made 1o customers.
- Interest income is recognized as revenue on time proportion basis.

Earnings per share

The Company presents earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares, Basic EPS 1s
calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company
by weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year, Diluted EPS is
determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary sharcholders and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the prepose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalent comprise cash in hand, cash
at bank and short term investments with maturity of not later than three muonths at known
amount in rupees.

Related party transactions

Transactions involving related parties arising in the normal course of business are conducted at
arm's length at normal commercial rates on the same terms and conditions as third party
transactions using valuation modes as admissible.

schie;
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Dividend and apportioning to reserves

Dividend and appropriation to reserves are recognized in the linancial statements in the period
in which these are approved.

Financial instruments
Financial assets

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following categorics: at fair value through
profit or loss, fair value through other comprehensive income and amortized cost. The
classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its financial asscts at initial recognition. All the
financial assets of the Company as at statement of financial position date are carried at
amortized cosl.

Amortized cost

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both the following conditions and is
not designated as at fuir value through profit or loss:

(i) it is held with in a business model whose objective is 10 hold assets to collect contractual
cash tlows; and

(ii) its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

Equity Investments at FVOCI

These assets are initially measured at cost plus transaction cost that are directly attributable to
its acquisition. Subsequently. these are measured at fair value. Dividends are recognized as
income in the statement of profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of
part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognized in other
comprehensive income and are never reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

These assets are initially recognized at cost. Subsequently, these are measured at fair value.
Net gains and losses, including any interest / markup or dividend income, are recognized in
profit or loss.

Impairment

The Company recognizes loss allowance for Lixpected Credit Losses (ECLs) on lnancial
assets measured at amortized cost and contract assets, The Company measures loss allowance
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

Lifetime ECLs are those that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. The maximum period considered when estimating [CLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the Company is exposed 1o credit risk. ;

Page - 11
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5.23

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether the financial assets carried at amortized
cost are eredit-impaired. A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that
have detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have
occurred.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross
carrying amount of the assets. The gross carrying amount ol a financial asset is written ot
when the Company has no reasonable expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety
or a portion thereof.

Financial liabilitics

All financial lizbilities are recognized at the time when the Company becomes a party to the
contractval provisions of the instrument.

Recognition and measurement

All financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at cost, which is the fair value of the
consideration given and received respectively. These financial assets and liabilities are
subsequently measured at fair value, amortized cost or cost, as the case may be. The particular
measurement methods adopted are disclosed in the individual policy statements associated
with each item.

Derecognition

The financial assets are de-recognized when the Company loses control of the contractual right
that comprise the financial assets, The financial liabilities are de-recognized when they are
extinguished i.c. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or
expired.

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

A financial asset and a financial liability is offset and the net amount is reported in the balance
sheet if the Company has a legally enforceable right to set-off the recognized amounts and
intends either to settle on a net basis or w realize the assets and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Foreign currency translation

Transactions in foreign currencies are converted into Pak Rupees at the rates of exchange
prevailing on the dates of transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are
translated into Fak Rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date.
Exchange gains and losses are ineluded in the profit and loss account.

Contingencies

A contingent liability is disclosed when the Company has a possible obligation as a result of
past events, existence of which will be confirmed only by the oceurrence or non-occurrence of
onie or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company; or the
Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that arises from past events, but it is

1ot
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5.25:1

5.25.2

5.254

not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation, or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sullicient
reliability.

Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from
which it may earn revenues and incur expenses including revenues and expenses that relate to
transactions with any of the Company’s other components, The Company has only one
reportable segment.

Significant accounting judgments and critical accounting cstimates / assumptions

The preparation of [inancial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards
requires the management to:-

- exercise its judgment in process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, and
- use of certain ¢ritical accounting ¢stimates and assumptions concerning the future,

Judgments an. assumptions have been required by the management in applying the Company's
accounling policies in many areas. Actual results may differ from estimates caleulated using
these judgments and assumptions.

The arcas inviolving eritical accounting estimates and significant assumptions concerning the
future are discussed below:-

Provision for inventory obsolescence

The Company reviews the carrying amounts of stores, spares and loose tools and stock in trade
on regular basis and provision is made for obsolescence if there is any change in usage pattern
and physical form of related stores, spares and loose tools and stock in trade.

Income taxes

The Company takes into account the current income tax law and decisions taken by appellate
authorities. Instances where the Company's view differs from the view taken by the income tax
department at ‘ne assessment stage and where the Company considers that its view on items of
material nature is in accordance with law, the amounts are shown as contingent Habilities.

Propeity, plani and equipment

The estimates for revalued amounts, if any, of different classes of property, plant and
equipment, are based on valuation performed by external professional valuers and
recommendation of technical teams of the Company. The said recommendations also include
estimates with respect 1o residual values and useful lives. Further, the Company reviews the
value of the assets for possible impairment on an annual basis. Any change in these estimates
in future years might affect the carrying amounts of the respective items of property, plant and
equipment with corresponding effect on the depreciation charge and impairment loss,

Stores and spares
Managemen! has made estimates for realizable amount of slow moving and obsolete stores and

b
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5.25.5

5.25.7

spares items to determine provision for slow moving and obsolete items. Any future change in
the estimated realizable amounts might affect carrying amount of stores and spares with
corresponding effect on amounts recognized in profit and loss account as provision / reversal,

Defined benefits plan

The management has exercised judgment in applying Company’s accounting policies for
classification of Post Employment Benefits as Defined Benelfits Plan (refer note 5.9) that
have the mos! significant effects on the amount recognized in the financial statements,

Expected credit losses

The assessmiient of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic
conditions and ECLs is & significant estimate. Company uses a provision matrix to calculate
ECLs for trade receivables,

The provision matrix is initially based on the Company’s historical observed default rates and
forecast of cconomic conditions that are expected to deteriorate over the next year which can

lead to an increased number of defaults. At every reporting date, the historical observed default
rates are updated and changes in the forward looking estimates are analysed.

Contingencies

The Company reviews the status of all the legal cases on regular basis. Based on expected
outcome and lawyers' judgments, appropriate disclosure or provision is made,

2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Operating fixed assets 6.1 176,950,935 156,262.530
Right of use 6.5 041,127 ],882.254
177.892.062 158,144,784

vl
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Covered Area

® L3 ¥ 4 ‘i ¥ ]
Location Particulars (Insq:t)
4) Main mill building including 70,827
Mandra-Chakwal road, Tehsil Gujar cotton  godown, store  room,
Khan, District Rawalpindi, Punjab, canteen block, workshops and
Pakistan. other civil works.
b) rooms. bungalows and BOQs 14,744
houses.
85,571

6.3 Revaluation of freehold land, building and plant and machinery

6.3.1 The Company has adopled the revaluation model for subsequent measurement of frechold land,
buildings and plant and machinery. Further details of revaluation carried out by the Company to
date are as follows:

Name of independent valuer Date of revaluation Revaluation surplus

(Rupees)
M/s Asrem (Private) Limited Degember 31, 2021 38307323
M5 Asrenm (Private) Limited Becember 31, 2017 46,914,451
M/s Asrem (Private) Limited June 30,2014 43,795, 54|
M/s Asrem (Private) Limited June 7, 2010 22,258,957
M/s Zia Consultants Jung 30, 1996 33,215,659

6.3.2  M/s Asrem (Private) Limited are at the panel of professional valuers maintained by the State
Bank of Pakistan and they have appropriate qualification and relevant experience in the fair
value measurement of properties in the relevant location. The fair value of land was
determined based on the market comparable approach that reflects recent transaction price for
similar properties, the fair value of building was determined using cost approach, reflects the
cost to a market participant to conduct assess of comparable wtility and age _adjusted for
depreciation factor | price factor and obsolescence,

6.3.3 Had there been no revaluation, the net hook value of the specific classes of operating assets
would have been as follows:

2024 2023
Rupecs Rupees
Freehold land 200,965 299,995
Buildings on frechold land E!U,E}GE 852,697
4,939 345 5,488,161

Plant and machinery

6.3.4 The foreed sale value of the revalued freehold land. buildings and plant and equipment at the
lime of revaluation was assessed at Rs. 101.25 million, Rs. 17.250 million and Rs. 21.076
illion respectively,
million respectively Lot
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6.4  Depreciation for the year has been allocated as follows:

Cost of sales
Administrative expenses

6.5  Right of use asset

Buildings:
Cost
As at July 01,
Additions during the year
As at June 30,

Accumulated depreciation

As at July 01,

Depreciation charge during the year
As at June 30,

Net book value

Useful life (years)

2024 2023
Rupees Rupees
4,796,712 4,290,489
283,863 304,439
3,080,575 4,594,928
2,823,381 -

- 2,823,381
2,823,381 2,823,381
941,127 -
941,127 941,127
1,882,254 041,127

941,127 1,882,254
3 3

6.5.1 Depreciation expense relating to right of use assct has been charged to administrative expensces,

Page - 17
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7.1

8.1

01

2024 2023

Note Rupees Rupees
LOANS AND ADVANCES
Unsecured - considered good
Asat July 01, 4.832.750 4 444,000
Disbursements 2,735,000 8.485,000
Receipts (2,126,000) (8.096,250)
As at June 30, 5.441.750 4,832,750

Current portion of loans and advances

1 (389,000}

(453.000)

5,052,750

4,379,750

These balances represent interest free loans and advances given to employees. The Chiel
Executive Officer and Directors have not taken any loans and advances from the Company.
These balances are carried at cost as the impact of amortisation is not material in respect of

these financial statements.

2024 2023
Rupees Rupees
STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS
Stores 3,788,668 3,321,909
Spares 150,473 9%.340
3,939,143 3.420.249

Stores and spares also include items which may result in capital expenditure but are not
distinguishable at the time of purchase. However, the stores and spares consumption resulting
in eapital expenditure are capitalized in cost of respective assets.

Cost of stores and spares amounting to Rs. 17,522,154 has been recognized as an expense
during the year (2023: Rs. 14.654,948).

2024 2023
Rupees Rupees
STOCK IN TRADE
Raw material 8,366,668 4,140,307
5,851,217 4,712,593

Work in process
Finished goods 18,920,508 17,910,450
Waste 43,489 273,525

33,181,882 27.036.875

Cost of inventories recognized as expense amounts to Rs. 648929282 (2023: Rs.

568,034,758), E
¥
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11

12

12.1

13

The aggregate amount of write-down of finished goods to net realizable value recognised as an
expense during the year was Rs. 241,024.

2024 2023
Rupees Rupees
TRADE DEBTS
Unsecured - considered good 1 19,982,867 29.2(2.712

All trade receivables are in respect of local sales.

No impairment loss has been recognised apainst trade debts, as management believes these
balances are fully recoverable.

2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees
LOANS AND ADVANCES
Unsecured-considered good
Loans
Current portion of long-term loans ¥ 389,000 453,000
Advances to suppliers 1.1 125,008 118,910
514.008 571,910

This represents advances to suppliers in the normal course of business. These are unsecured
and does not carry any interest or mark-up.

2024 2023
Rupees Rupees
SHORT TERM INVESTMENT
Fair value through profit and loss
As at July 0! 503,965 500,000
Fair value gain 94,370 3,965
As at June 30 598.335 503,965

This represents investment in 4,932.86 units of HBL Cash Fund in HBL Asset Management
Limited at cost of Rs, 500,000.

2024 2023
Note Rupeces Rupees
PREPAID LEVY
As at July 01 923,093 145,138
Additions 14,091,688 10.796.484
Less: minimum tax for the year 30 (12.013,350) (10,018,529)
As at June 30 3.001.43] 023 1493
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2024 2023

Note Rupees Rupees
14 CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash in hand 44,244 51,479
(ash at banks
Current accounts - Local currency 366,486 699,940
Saving accounts - Local currency 14.1 13,424 474 12,109,797
13,835,204 12,861,216

14.1  Saving account carries mark up at the rates ranging from 0.25% to 0.28% (2023: 0.17% 1o
0.23%) per annum.

2024 2023
Rupees Rupees
15 SHARE CAPITAL
15,1  Authorized share capital
Number of ordinary
shares of Rs. 10/- each
2024 2023
Ordinary shares
5,000,000 5,000,000 of Rs. 10 cach 50,000,000 50.000,000
15.2  Issued, subseribed and paid up capital
Number of ordinary
shares of Rs. 10/- cach
2024 2023 Ordinary  shares
of Rs. 10 each
1,300,000 1.300.000 fully paid in cash _1_3 000,000 13,000,000

15.3  All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to entitlement of dividend, voting rights, board
selection , right of final refusal and block voting.

16 REVALUATION SURPLUS ON PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The revaluation surplus represents net cumulative increase in the carrying amount as a resull
of revaluation of property, plant and equipment carried at revalued amount. g
c
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2024 2023

Rupees Rupees
Revaluation surplus as at July 01 144,075,398 147,371,011
Less:  tramsferred to equity in respect of
incremental depreciation charged during
the year-net of deferred tax 2,977,082 2,339,885
Related deferred tax liability during the ||
year transferred to profit or loss account
. 955,728
2,977,082 3,295,613

141,098,316 144.075,398

Less; Related deferred tax effect:
Balance as at July 01, 9243 865 10,199,593
Transferred to revaluation surplus (9,243 ,865) -

Reiaed deferred tax liability during the

year (ransferred to profit or loss account - (955.728)
- 9,243,865

141,098.316 134,831,533

16.1  The revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment is a capital reserve, and 1s not
available for distribution to the sharcholders in accordance with section 241 of the Companies

Act. 2017.
2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees
17 STAFF RETIREMENT BENEFITS -
GRATUITY
Staff retirement benefits - gratuity 17.1 32,658,401 24,152,146

17.1  Staff retirement benefits - gratuity
Generai deseription
The scheme provides for terminal benefits for all its permanent emplovees who attain the
minimum qualifying period at varying percentages of last drawn gross salary. The percentage

depends on the number of service years with the Company. Annual charge is based on actuarial
valuation carried out as at August 13, 2024 using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

The Company fuces the following risks on account of gratuity:

Final salary risk - The risk that the final salary at the time of cessation ol service is greater than
what the Company has assumed. Since the benefit is caleulated on the final salary, the benefit
amount would also increase proportionately. 744
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17.2

17.3

17.4

Discount rate fluctuation - The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with
reference to corporate bond yields. A decrease in corporate bond yields will increase plan
liabilities, although this will be partially offset by an increase in the value of the current plans’

bond holdings.

Mortality rate risk - The present value of the defined benefit liability is calculated by reference
to the best estimate of the marality of plan participants during employment. An improvement
in the mortality rates of the participants may increase/ decrease the lability and vice versa
depending on the age-service distributing of the exiting employces.

Principal actuarial assumptions

Following are a few important actuarial assumptions used in the valuation:

Discount rate (%)

Expected rate of return on plan assets (%5)

Expected rate of increase in salary (%)

Average expected remaining working life time of
employee (Years)

Weighted average duration of the defined benefits
obligation ( Years)

Mortality profile

Reconciliation of balance due to defined benefit
plan

Present value of defined benelit obligation

Movement of the liability recognized in the
balance sheet

Opening net liability

Charge for the year

Remeasurement  loss  chargeable 1o other
comprehensive income

Benefits paid during the year

Closing net Lability

Movement in present value of defined benefit
obligations

Opening present value of defined benefit obligations
Current service cost for the year
Interest cost for the year

Page - 22

2024 2023
14.75 16.25
HTTE 15...7!5
8 8
7 7
SLIC (2001-05)
2024 2023
Rupees Rupees
32.658,401 2:4.152.I4l’1

24,152,146 19,025,428
0,745,587 7.053.290

1.960.818 2230.168
(3,200,150) (4,156,740)

32658401 24,152,146

24,152,146 19,025,428
6.080.875 4,807,805
3.664.712 2.245485
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17.5

17.6

173

17.8

17.9

17.16

17.11

2024 2023

Rupees Rupees

Benefits paid during the year (3,200,150) (4,156,740)
Remeasurement loss on obligation 1,960,818 2.230.168
Closing present value of defined benefit obligations 32,658,401 24,152,146
Charge for the year

Current service cosl 6.U80.875 4,807,805
Interest cost 3,664,712 2,245,485
Charge for the year 9745587 7,053,290
Remeasurement chargeable to other
comprehensive income

Remeasurement loss on defined obligation due to:

Experience adjustment 1,960,818 2,230,168

The Company has no plan assets, therefore fair value and movement in the fair value of plan
assets has not been presented.

Sensitivity analysis

The calculation of the defined benefit obligations sensitive to the assumption sel out above.
The following table summaries how the impact on the defined benefit obligation at the end of
the reporting period would have increased / (decreased) as a result of a change in the respective
assumptions by one percent.

Increase in Deerease in
Assumption Assumption
Rupees Rupees
Discount rate 30,461,454 35,014,570
Salary increase 35,013,796 30,461,080

The charge in respect of defined benefit plan for the year ending June 30, 2025 i5 estimated to
be Rs, 11.826 million.

There are no plan assets, therefore, disclosure in respect to plan assets required as per IAS 1Y
"Employee Benelits" has not been made in these financial statements.
Comparison of five years

Comparison of present value of defined benefit obligation and experience adjustument on
obligation for the current and preceding four years is as follows:

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 —l

Present value of
benefit obligation 32,638,401 24,152,146 19,025 428 16,344,032 13.832.848
72"'4;"/'
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17.12

18

18.1

18.2

18.3

18.4

19

Undiscounted expected benefit payments from active employees

Year 1 Year2to 5 Year 6 to 10
--Rupees -
Expected henefits payments 4,150,972 22,884,347 39,738,295
2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees
DEFERRED TAXATION
Deferred tax liability 18.1 - 10,809,566
Deferred tax asset 18.2 - (589,239)
Net deferred tax liability - 10,220,327
Effective tax rate 0% Ll 29%
Deferred tax liability on taxable temporary
differences:
Accelerated tax depreciation 1,019,847
Right of use asset 545,854
Surplus on revaluation of property plant and
0,243 865

equipment

Deferred tax asset on  deductible temporary

differences:

[ease liabilities

10,809,566

589,239

— e
—_——————

The Company is expected 10 remain in a non-tax/levy regime with a zero effective tax rate for
the foreseeable future: therefore, no deferred tax is recorded in these financial statements,

The gross movement in the deferred tax liability during the year is as follow:

Nute

Balance as at July 01,

Charged to statement of profit or loss
Trasnferred to revaluation surplus
Balance as at June 30,

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Payable to [ESCO 19.1
Lease liabilities 19.2
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2024 2023
Rupees Rupees
10,220,327 11,644,515

(976.462) (1.424,188)
(9.243.865) .

- 10,220,327
7,250,308 -
2,299,129 2,031.860
9,549,437 2.031.860



Less:
Current portion of payable 1o IESCO
Current portion of lease liabilities

Note

19.2

2024 2023
Rupees Rupees
3,625,154 :
2,299,129 032,731
5.924.283 932,731
3,625,154 1,099,129

19.1  This refers to the Fuel Cost Surcharge imposed by Islamabad Electric Supply Company
Limited (IESCO) as a levy in the company's monthly electricity bills from July 2022 onwards.
The deferred charges, amounting to Rs 7.250 million, will be paid in 24 equal monthly
instalments. The liability is recorded at carrying value as the impact of amortisation Is

immaterial in respect of these financial statements.

19.2 Movement of lease liabilities

As at July 01,

Additions

Payments

Interest expense for the year
As at June 30,

Current
Non-current

19.2.1 Muaturity anaiysis of lease liability

Up to one year
After one year

Future finance charges
Present value of lease liability

19.2.2 Amounts recognized in statement of profit or loss
Interest on lesse liabilities
19.2.3 Amounts disclosed in the statement of cash flows

Total cash ouiflows for lease
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2024 2023
Rupees Rupees
2.031,860 s
- 2,823,381
- (1.200,000)
267.269 408.479
2,299,129 2.031.860
2,299,129 932,731
- 1,099,129
2,299,129 2,031,860
2,400,000 1,200,000
- 1,200,000
2,400,000 2,400,000
(100,871) (368.140)
2,299,129 2,031,860
267,269 408,479
1,200,000

ke
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2001

20.2

21

21.1

22

22.1

LONG TERM LOAN FROM DIRECTORS

Asat July 01,
Payments
Asat June 30,

Less: current portion shown under eurrent liabilities

2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees
20.1 61,849,546 62,699,546
(520,075) (850,000)
61,329,471 61,849,546
(61,329.471)  (61,849,546)

This represents unsecured interest free loan from two directors and Chief Executive of the

Company. The loan was payable on July 01, 2015. As these are now pavable on demand,
therefore all amounts have been transferred to current liabilities in the finaneial statements.

The maximum aggregate amount due to Directors at the end of any month during the year was

Rs. 61,329,471 (2023: Rs, 62,699,546).

SHORT TERM LOAN FROM DIRECTORS

As at July 01,
Additions
As at June 30,

2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees
15,350,000 9,100,000
24,000,000 6,250,000
2L 39,350,000 15.350.000

This represents unsecured interest free loan from two Directors and Chief Executive of the
Company o meet the working capital requirements and installation of Solar system at the mills

premises. These are payable on demand.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Creditors

Accrued expenses

Advances from customers
Government dues

Waorkers' Profit Participation Fund
Workers' Welfare Fund

Income tax payable

Sales tax due to government
Zakat payable

Workers' Profit Participation Fund

Balance at July 01,
Allocation for the year
Amount paid during the year
Balance at June 30,
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2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees
3,762,135 1,869,506
25,051,796 10,369,446
1,498,625 4,669,570
1,070,308 852,650
a2:1 - S10.884
71.510 283,490
53,007 38,069
200,220 3.272.151
3,791 3,791
31.647.392  21.869,557
510,884 737,332
- S10.884
(510,884) (737.332)
- 510,884

2%
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23.1

23.2

24

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Contingencies

From July 2022 onwards, Islamabad Electric Supply Company Limited (IESCOQ) is imposing a
levy in monthly electricity bills of the company in respect of Quarterly Tarifl Adjustment,
Financing Cost (FC) surcharge and Fuel Price Adjustment (FPA). The balance under this levy
is accumulated to Rs. 2.857 million as at year end June 30, 2024, Being aggrieved. the
Company has filed a stay petition against the said levy in the Rawalpindi bench of Lahore High
Court, The company's management remains optimistic about the case's verdict and 1s hopetul

for a favorable outcome.

Commitments

There were no capital commitments as at June 30, 2024 (2023; nil).

SALES

Yarn
Wasle

Less: sales tax

COST OF SALES

Raw material consumed

Store and spares consumed
Salaries, wages and other benefits
Power charges

Insurance

Repairs and maintenance
Depreciation

Work in process
Opening
Closing

Cuost of goods manufactured
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Note

B3 ) b
LI T '_..l"l
Ll pd =

6.4

2024
Rupees

1,132,034,968

1,541.641

2023
Rupees

939,745,108
1,086,726

1,133,576.609

(172,918.464)

940,831,834
(139,535,409)

960.658.145

—_—

801,296,425

650,847,928 577,744 854
17,522,154 14,654,948
123,358,364 103,882,188
162,397,111 83,507,472
580,991 571,602
339,525 142 880
4,796,712 4,290,489
059,842,785 784,794,433
4,712,593 4,792,641
(5,851.217) (4,712,593)
(1,138,624) 80,048
958,704,161 784 874 481
“
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26

Finished goods
Opening
Closing

Waste
Opening
Closing

Cost of goods sold

Raw material consumed

Opening stock

Add: purchases

Note

9

9

Cost of raw materials available for use

Less: closing stock

Store and spares consumed

Opening stock

Add: purchases

Less: closing stock

Salaries. wages and other bencfils includes an a
in respect of staff retirement benefits.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries and other benefits
Directors' remuneration
Molor running expenses

Depreciation

Subscription and membership fee

Zakat

Telephone expenses

Entertainment

Traveling and conveyance

Advertisement

Printing, stationery and periodicals
Rates and taxes
Other expenses
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2024 2023
Rupees Rupees
17,910,450 8.302,32]
(18.920.508) (17.910.450)
(1,010,058) (9,608.129)
273,525 91,510
(43,489))| (273,525)
230,036 (182,015)

957,924,139

775,084,337

4,140,307 4,709,979
655,074,289 577,175,182
639,214,596 581,885,161

(8,366.668) (4,140.307)

650.847.928

577,744,854

3,420,249 2.913,511
18,041,048 15,161,686
21,461,297 18,075,197
(3.939,143) (3,420,249)
17.523.154 14,654,948

—_—————————
mount of Rs. 7.248,033 (2023; Rs.5.046917)

2024 2023
Rupees Rupees
10,181,335 8,629,002

278,400 278,400
1,443,060 1,183,176
1,224,990 1,245,566

507,270 338.260

500,000 703,000

141.786 127,321

98,539 41,846
95,940 T2 940
57.690 96,884
25,080 14,790

§.449 36,237

247,187 218,225

14,809,726 12.985.643

rabss




26.1 Salaries and other benefits include Rs. 2,497.554 (2023: Rs. 2.006,373) in respect of stafl
retirement benefits.

b
9
2

This represent zakat given to Sindh Institute of Urology and Transplantation amounting 1o Rs.
500.000, No charitable contributions were paid to any organisation, in which the directors, ot
spouses of the directors of the Compauny, had any interest.

2024 2023
Rupees Rupees
27 OTHER OPERATING CHARGES

Legal and professional expenses 312,394 374 429

Auditor's remuneration
Statutory audil 430,000 400,000
Half yearly review 60,000 60,000
Fee for other certification 20.000 20,000
' 510,000 480,000
Workers' Profit Participation Fund - 510,884
Workers' Welfare Fund - 276,835
822,394 1,642,148

—_— ——
28 OTHER INCOME

Income from non-financial assets

Scrap sales 409,892 185.870
Bank profit 177.375 42,956
Liabilities written back 59,255 -

Miscellaneous - 77.900

6,520 306.726
19 FINANCE COST
[nterest on lease liability 267.2649 408,479

Bank commission and charges 164,870 77.591
432,139 486,070

30 MINTMUM TAX

Minimum tax under section 113 12,013,350 10.018.529

pe———

30.1  This represents minimum tax paid under section 113 of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (ITO,
2001), representing levy in terms of requirements of IFRIC 21/1AS 31.(1&?

-

Page - 29



3l

31.1

Al

2024 2023

Rupees Rupews
INCOME TAX
Provision for taxation
Current = =
Prior year - 15,531
Delerred (976,462) (1.424,188)
(976,462) _(1,408.657)

The Company has adopted the approach of recognizing amount calculated on revenue as a levy
under IFRIC 21/IAS 37 as an operating expense, with any excess recognized as current income
tax under TAS 12. Since the Company is expected to remain in a non-tax/levy regime with a
7ero effective tax rate for the foreseeable future, no deferred tax is recorded in these financial

slatements.
Numerical reconciliation between applicable tax ratc and average effective tax rate hus not

been prepared as the Company was subject 1o minimum tax in the current year and prior year.
o 7
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34

34,1

(LOSS)EARNING PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED
(Loss)/Profit afler taxation (Rupees)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares at the end
of the year (Numbers )

(Loss)/Earning per share - hasic and diluted (Rupees)

2024

Rupees

(25,735,721)

1,300,000

2023
Rupees

820,081

1. 300,000
ﬁ-

0.63

(19.80)

Thete is no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share of the Company.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The related partics and associated undertakings of the Company comprise of associated companies,

directors and key management personnel.

Transactions with related parties and associated

undertakings involve rent and advance for working capital requirements. These ransactions are us

follows:

Transactions during
the year and year
end balances

Mame of the
related pariy

Relationship and pereentage
shareholding

Associated company by virtue

j Mills ; - :
Ta) bAals of common directorship

- . .
Limited Lease rentals paid

payable

Amount payable al
vear end

Mahboob Elani  Direclor - 43.32% Lo received

Amount payable at

year end
Mahisoz Elahr  Chief Execulive - | 5.36%0 Adjustment {
repayment ol long
term loan
2 Loan received

Amount payable at
year end
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2024 10235
Rupees Rupees
1,200,000 |, 200,000
2,299,129 2,031,860
12,000,000 2,500,000
68,273,546 56,275,546
{520,075} (850,000)
6,500,000 3,750,000

21,728,924

| 5,748,909

R



2024 2023

Rupees Rupees
Mahmood Elahi Director - 15.40% Loan received 5,500,000 -
Amount payable at
year end 10,675,000 5,175,000

342 Compensation to key management personnel
The details of compensation paid to key management personnel are shown under the heading of

"Remuneration of Chief Executive, Directors and Executive (note 32)". There dare no transactions
with key management personnel other than under their terms of employment.

143 The status of oulstanding balances of related parties as at Junc 30, 2024 are included in "Long/short
term loan from directors” (note 20 and 21).
b
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35 FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The Company's exposure 1o interest tute risk on its financial pssets and labilities mre summarized as follows: -

Finaneial assels
¢ mrried at Tuir value

Short term investment

At amortized cost
Long lerm secority deposiis
Trode debis
Lo and advances

Cazh and bank halances

Financial Habilities
At amortized cost

Current partion of long term loan from directors
Short term loan from directors

Provision for graluity

Trade und other payables

Finaneial lisbilities

Unclaimed dividend

Ui halunce sheel gag
OFT balance sheet items

Financial commitmenis:
Totul Gap

Financial nssets
Carried at fuir value
Short erm investment
At amuriized cost
Liomg torm security deposits
Trade dobts
Lavims and advances
Cash and hank balanees

Financial liabilitics
At amaortized cost

Current purliun of long term loan from directors
Shiset term loan from diresiors

Provision for gratuity

Trade and pther pivables

Financial liabilities

Unclaimed dividend

Wi iialmsrms whes st mo
O hatlunee sheet items

Fintneinl commpoments:
Total Gap

24
lnterest/mark up hearing Not luteresi
Tuial Maturity Muturity fmaarh up
e one after o bearing
year veur Sub-total
Hupees
408,335 $98,335 - 598,333 -
918810 = - - Q18,510
19,982,507 . - - 19982867
5 566,758 - - . 5,500,758
13,835,204 13424474 - 13,424,474 411,730
20,901,974 14,022,809 - 14,022,809 26,879,165
61,329.471 - - - 61,329.471
30, A50, 000 - - - 35 350,000
32658401 - * 32638401
18,817,722 - - . 8817721
9,549,437 9,849,437 - 4549437 -
267,671 B - - 267,671
171,972,702 9,549.437 - 549437 {62 425,205
(131,000,728) 4473372 - 4473372 (135,544, 100)
(130,070,72%) 4473372 - 4473372 (135.544,100)
023
Interest/mark up bearing Mot interest
Tuotal Maturity Maturity Jmurk up
g o e afier vue bearing
year yeur Sub-total
Rupiees
303,965 503,963 - 803,463
918810 - - - QIE810
29202712 - - - 24207, 712
4,951,660 - . - 4,551,660
12,861,216 12,108,797 - 12,108,797 781419
48438 363 12,613,762 - 12,613,762 35,824,601
AlLE4Y, 546 - - - 61,549,546
15,350,000 . - - 15 350).01K)
24,152,140 - - - 24,150,146
12,753,627 - - - 12,753,627
2,768,140 2.A400,000 308, 140 2,768,140 -
267,671 - - - 267,671
[17, 140,130 2 A0, HHY 168 140 2. 768, 140 114372950
(R TRTy 10.215.762 {368,140) 4 845,621 (78,548.389)
(68,012,767 10,213,762 (J68.140) 9,845,622 (78,548,584
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36
36.1

36.2

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Company’s objective in managing risks is the creation and protection of share holders’
value. Risk is inherent in the Company’s activitics, but it is managed through a process of
ongoing identilication, measurement and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls.
The process of risk management 1 critical o the Company’s continuing profitability. The
Company is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk (which includes currency risk,
interest rate risk and price risk) arising from the financial instruments it holds.

The Company finances its operations through equity, borrowings and management of working
capital with a view to maintaining an appropriate mix between various sources of finance 1o
minimize risk.

Credit risk

Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognized at the reporting date if
counter parties fail to perform as contracted and arises principally from trade and other
receivables. The Company’s policy is to enter into finanecial contracts with reputable counter
parties in accordance with the internal guidelines and regulatory requirements.

Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amounts of the financial assets represent the maximum credit exposures before any
credit enhancements. Out of total financial assets of Rs. 40.777 million (2023: Rs. 48.319
million). the financial assets which are subject to credit risk amounted to Rs. 40.732 million
(2023: Rs. 48.267 million). The carrying amounts of financial assets exposed to credit risk at
reporting date are as under:

2024 2023
Rupees Rupees
Long term security deposits 918,810 Q18,810
Trade debts 19,982 867 29,202,712
Short term investment 598,335 503,965
Loans and advances 5.441,750 4,832,750
Bank balances 13,790,960 12.809.737
40,732,722 48,267,974
The aging of trade debts at the reporting date is as follows:
Past due 1-30 days 16,913,644 26,915,134
Past due 30-90 days 1,225,121 1,900,824
Past due 90 days 1,844,102 386,754

19,982,867 29,202,712

To manage exposure to credit risk in respect of trade receivables, management performs credit
reviews taking into account the customer’s financial position, past experience and other factors.
Where considered necessary, advance payments are obtained from certain parties. f

FEPAES
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36.3

36.4

(i

The exposure to banks is managed by dealing wit
exposure limits on continuous basis.

Concentration of credit risk

Concentration of credit risk arises when a numbe
business activities or have similar cconomic features that would

contractual obligation to be similarly affected by

conditions, The Company believes that it is not exposed to m

Impaired assets

During the year no assets have been impaired.

Liquidity risk

h variety of major banks and monitoring
The ratings of banks range from A 10 AAA,

¢ of counter parties are engaged in similar
cause their abilitics to meet
the changes in economic, political or other
ajor concentration of credit risk.

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting its financial
obligations as they fall due. The Company's appro

as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet
both normal and stress conditions, without incurring unagceptable

ach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far
its liabilities when due, under
losses or risking damage 10

the Company's reputation. The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities,

including interest payments

Staff retirement bengfits - gratuity
Long term loan frem directars
Short term loan from directors
Financial liabilities

Trade and other payables
Dividend payable! Unclaimed

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in
and equity prices will effect the Company's income or

instruments.

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future

fluctuate because of changes in fore
instruments that are denominated in foreign currencies i.e.
Presently the Company is not exposed to foreign currency

and excluding the impact of netting agrecments, if any:

04 23
Upto onie year | After oneyear | Total Upto one year | Affer one year Total
Rupees

1638400 32638300 150046 L M0
61329471 61320471 61849546 ¥ 61 849,546
39 350,000 - 39350000 15350000 . 15,350,000
594,283 3625184 349417 93373 |.049,129 2,031,860
1,647.392 31647382 21469357 21,860,557
207,671 - 267671 267071 . 167671
138,318,817 6085555 14802372 100,269,303 35251275 125,520,780

_ﬁ
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ion exchange rates, Curren

risk.

By

market price, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates
the value of its holdings of financial

cash flows of a financial instrument will
ey risk arise in financial
in a currency other than the



(ii)

(i)

37

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows ol a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Majority of the interest rate cxposure
arises from long term loans and short borrowings. At the statement of financial position date,
the interest rate profile of the Company's interest bearing financial instruments is as follows:

2024 | 2023 2024 | 2023
Rates Carrying amount
In Percent || @ ——=- -~ Rupees —-—-—-
Financial assets
Bank balances 02510 0.28 0.17 10 0.25 13,424.474 12,109,797

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

A change of 100 basis points in interesl rates al the reporting date would have increase /
(decrease) profit for the year by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other
variables, in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant. The analysis is performed on the
same basis for the prior year.

Profit and loss (post tax)

100 bps 100 bps
increase decrease
ceemmme= Rupees ==
As at June 30, 2024
Cash flow sensitivity - Variable rate financial assels - 95,514 (95.314)
As at Jung 30, 2023 -
Cash flow sensitivity - Variable rate financial assets 85980 (85,980)

The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on profit for the year
and assets / liabilities of the Company.

Other price risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or
currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial
instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the
market.

The Company is exposed to price risk, because of the investments held by the Company
classified as investment at fair value through profit or loss of Rs. 508,335 (2023: 503.965).
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an

orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Company is a going concern
and there is no intention or requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to
undertake a transaction on adverse terms,

¥ vlsts
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37.1

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and
regularly available from an exchange dealer, broker. industry group, pricing service or
regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions
on an arm's length basis.

IERS 13 'Fair Value Measurement' requires the Company to classify fair value measurements
and fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the
measurements of fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

- Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

- Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices ineluded within level 1 that are observable for the asse
either directly that is, derived from prices.

- Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that 18,
unadjusted) inputs.

Transfer between levels of the fair value hierarchy are recognized at the end of the reporting
period during which the changes have oceurred.

As of the reporting date, financial instruments of the Company includes financial instruments
carried at fair value through profit and loss only.

The carrying values of all other financial assets and liabilities reflected n the financial
statements approximate their fair values.

The Company has revalued its frechold land, buildings and plant and machinery an December
31, 2022. Fair value of property plant and equipment are based on the valuations carried out by
an independant valuer M/s Asrem (Private) Limited on the basis of market value.

The fair value of investments in HBL Cash Funds is considered to be Level 1, as their prices are
quoted in an active market. The fair value of land and building are based on assumptions
considered to be level 2 in the fair value hicrarchy due to significant observable inputs used in
the valuation and fair value of plant and machinery are considered to be level 3 in the fair value
hierarchy due to significant unobservable inputs used in the valuation.

Valuation techniques used to derive level 2 fair values - Land and Building

Fair value of land and building has been derived using a sales comparison approach, Sale prices
of comparable land and buildings in close proximity are adjusted for differences in key
attributes such as location and size of the property. Moreover value of building also depends
upon the type ol construction, age and quality. The most significant input in this valuation
approach is price / rale per square foot in particular locality. This valuation is considered to be
tevel 2 in fair velue hierarchy due to significant observable inputs used in the valuation.

Valuation techniques used to derive level 3 fair values - Plant and Machinery
In the absence of current prices in an active market, the fair value is determined by taking into
account the following factors:
. e
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- Make, model, country of origin and cte.;

- Operational capacity;
- Present physical condition;

- Resale prospects; and

- Obsolescence.

The valuation is considered to be level 3 in the fair value hierarchy due to the above
unobservable inputs used in the valuation, Most significant input in this valuation is the current
replacement cost which is adjusted for factors above.

373 A reconciliation from opening balances to closing balances of fair value measurements

categorized in level 3 is provided below:

2024 2023
Rupees Rupees
Opening balance (level 3 recurring fair values) 22.524.975 25,027,750
Additions - Cost - -
Revaluation surplus during the year - =
Depreciation charge (2,252,498) (2,502.775)
Closing balance (ievel 3 recurring fair values) 20272477 22524975

——eeeLLL

There were no transfers between levels 2 and 3 for recurring fair value measurements during the

374 Had there been no revaluation, the net book value of the specific classes of operating assets have

38

been disclosed in note 6.

RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENT OF LIABILITIES TO CASH FLOWS ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Linbilities Equity
Loan frem Director . i Aceumulated Taotnl
: Share capital
Long ferm | Short term liss

Rupeey ——— e
13,000,000 (44,886, 434) 45313112

Balance at July (11, 2023 61.849,546 15,330,000

Chunges from financin; cash flows

Proceeds from loan and borrowings * 24,000,000 - - 24,000,000
Repaymenis of loan and borrowings (520,075) - - . {520,075)
Totul changes from financlog cash Dows (520,073)  24.0HHLIM - - 23479925

Equity related

Total comprehensive loss for the year
Transfer from revaluation surplus
Tutal equity related other changes -

E - - (27700530 (27.700.539)
- - 2977082 2,977,082
- - (24,723457)  (24.723:437)

30,350,000 14,000,000 165, 60% 891 ) 68,793,037
—

>t

Balince us at June 30, 2024 61329471
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DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENT FOR ALL SHARE ISLAMIC INDEX

Following information has been disclosed with reference to disclosure requirements of fourth
schedule of the Companies Act, 2017 relating to "All Shares [slamic Index".

June 3, June 3,
2024 2023
Rupees Rupees

Deseription Explanation
L.oans and advances Non-interest bearing -
Deposits Non-interest bearing - -
Sepment revenue The Company has only one segment -
Bank balances as at Placed under interest arrangement -
June 30, Placed  under  Shariah

permissible arrangements 12,483,127 12,109.797
Income on  bank Placed under interest arrangement - -
deposils Placed under  Shariah

permissible arrangements 16,203 18.327
Gain/(loss) on
available-for-sale
investments
Dividend income - -
All sources of other income disclosed in note 28 177.375 42,936

Exchange gain Earned from actual currency . -

Relationship with banks
having Islamic windows
Meezan Bank Limited - =

There is no other bank balance / investments which carry any interest or markup arrangements.
CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Board's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as 10 maintain investor, creditor and markel
confidence and to sustain future development of the business, The Board of Directors monitors the
return on capital, which the Company defines as net profit after taxation divided by total sharcholders'
equity. The Board of Directors also monitors the level of dividend to ordinary shareholders. There
were no changes to the Company's approach to capital management during the year and the Company
is not subject to exi-mally imposed capital requirements.

2024 2023
Rupees Rupees
Capital structure of company is as follows
Equity 84,488,425 102,945,009

[.ong term Loan from directors -

Short Term Loan from directors | 00,679,471
185.167.896

77,199,546
180,144,645

7ofper
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2024 2023

Numbers Numbers
41  PLANT CAPACITY, PRODUCTION AND EMPLOYEES
No. of spindles installed 8,388 §,388
Installed capacity converted into 20's count [bs, 0,601,618 6,601,618
Actual production converted into 20's count 1bs. 4,018,190 4150560
Actual production in 1bs. 3,904,100 3,912.600
Average count manufactured 21 21
No. of shifis worked daily 2 2

41.1 Reasons for under utilization of capaeity

The Company could not achieve the installed capacity due to excessive electricity shut down which
resulted in decrease in one production shift.

42 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

2024 2023
Numbers Numbers
Total number of eroployees as at June 30, . 283 291
Average during the year 286 290

45 CORRESPONDING FIGURES

The corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified, wherever considered necessary, for
better presentation and classification. Following major reclussification have been made during the

year.
2
Deseription Reclassificd from Reclassified 1o i i
Iupues Rupees
Provision for Taxation Melimirmuim tax 12,013,350 10018, 525
taxation - current {presented on fee
rax of stutement of
pratit or loss)
Tax receivable / Tuxution - mel Prepaid Levy 3001431 923,093
adjustable

44  DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements are authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on _

45 GENERAL

Figures have been rounded off 1o the nearest rupee. e,

| ol f ’ MM E ke Sl r ' \H‘i 1_}_\___
CHIEE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017
The Companies Regulations-2024

{Section 227520 (0and Regulailion 360

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDINGS

“Non-Banking Financial Institutions: e
235 Insurance companies:

2.3.6 Modarabus and nmlual funds: - -

"2 3.7 Sharehalders ]mldmh 10% or more - 1 J13 EﬁH
2.3.8 General F Public ) - o =
& *  Local . 88,888

b. * foreign =

239 Othcn (to be pruﬁcd} Joint Stock Lorﬁpany 1 52,743

FORM-20

ereentage

§1.4130

1.1 Name of the Company + ELAHI COTTON MILLS LIMITED
2.1 Pattern of holding of the shares
held by shareholders as at v June 30, 2024,
2.2 NO. OF SHAREHOLDINGS TOTAL
SHARE SHARES
HOLDERS HELD
46 1 to 100 1.119
27 101w 500 10,868
34 S0l to 1,000 22275
21 [Laul 1o 5,000 37,926
3 5001 to 10,000 19,300
1 15,001 to 20,000 19,244
I 70,001 w 75000 73,500
| 150,001 to 155,000 152,743
1 195,001 to 200,000 199.625
I 200,001 w 205,000 200,200
| 360,001 o 5365000 563.200
137 - TOTAL - 1,300,000
23 CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS Shares
held
2.3.1 Directors, Chief Executive Officer and their
= spouse and minor children 1,058,369
2.3.2  Associated Companies, undertakings and
o related parties . ) -
2.3.3 hf"l_"_@p 1 S e
2.34 Banks. Duvclnpm&nt Financial institution,

_ 858360

68375

11,7495



ELAHI COTTON MILLS LIMITED
Categoties of Shareholding required under Code of Corporate Governance (CCG)
As at June 30, 2024

S. No, Name | No.of | percentage
Shares
held

Associated Companies, ndertakings
and Related Parties: (Name wise detail) - -

Mutual Funds: (Name wise detail ) 3 - -

Directors and their spouse and minor children:
(Name wise detail)

1. [ Mr. Mahboob Elahi 563,200 | 43.3231

2, Mr. Mahfooz Elahi 199,675 | 153596

3. | Mr. Mahmood Elahi 200,250 | 15.4038

L 4 Sheikh Farrukh Ahmed 2.500 (0,1923

5. Mr. Ahmed Shaffi 19,244 1.4803

b, Mrs. Samina Begum 73.500 5.6538
1 Mr. Muhammad Azeem Afzal Hashmi - -
Executives: . -

Public Centre Companies & Corporations:

Banks, Developments Finance Institutions, Takatul,

Modarabas and pension Funds: Non-Banking Financial
Institutions. Insurance Companies, Takaful, Modarabas
and Pension Funds: -- ]

Shareholders holding five percent or more voting
| interest in the listed Company: (Name wise detail)

1. Mr. Mahboob Elahi 563.200 | 43.3231
2. Mr. Mahfooz Elahi 199,675 | 153596
3. Mr. Mahmood Elahi ) 200250 | 154038
4. Salim Sozer Securities (Pvt) Limited 152,743 | 11.7495
5 Mrs. Samina Begum 73,500 5.6538

All trades in the Shares of the listed Company, carried
out by its Direetors, CEO,CFO, Company Secretary and
their spouses and minor children:

§.No. | Name Sale Purchase

i NIL




ELAHL COTTON MILLS LIMITED

Folio Nu. i CDC Account No.
Participant L. . Account No.

PROXY FORM

I'We _ of  being n member/members of
FLAHI COTTON MILLS LIMITED hereby appoint ~ {name}
of > L = Full address) or friling hindher

{name) of .
S ) ) ~ (Full address) another meniber of
the company as my/our proxy to atend and vote for me/us and on my/our behalf, at the 54% Annual General
Meeting of the company 10 be held at registered office of the Company at Plat # 270, Sector 1-9, Industrial Area,
Islamabad on October 25, 2024 at 10.00 a.m. or at any adjourmment thereof.
Signed this day of in the presence of
the following wilnesses

Signature on Rupees Fifty
Revenue Stamp
(Signature should agree with the
specimen signature registered with

the company)
Wrtoess 1 8 Witness 2
Signature Signature
Mame MName -
CNIC Nao. ) CHNIC No. —
Address - Address
Lmportant

I. A member entitled to atend and vote at this Annual General Meeting of the company moy appoint another
member as proxy to attend and vote instead of hirm / her, No person shall act as proxy, who is not a membir.

3. The instrument appointing a proxy should be signed by the member (s) or by hisMer attorney duly authorized in
writing. [f the member is a corporation, its comman seal should be affixed 1o the instrument,

3. This Proxy Form, duly completed, must be deposited @t the company’s Registered Office, at Plot# 270, Sector
19, Industrial A =a, Islamabad, not less than 48 hours befare the time of holding the meeting.

4. The Proxy shall peoduce his original CNIC or ariginal passport at the time of the Meeting,

5 In case of individuai CDC Account holders, attested copy of CNIC or passport (as the case may be) of the
beneficial owner will have to be provided with this Proxy.

6 In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors Resolution/Power of Attorey with specimen signature of the

notminee shall he submitted along-with this Proxy.
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